
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Heywood Township 
Committee

Enquiries to: Michael Garraway
Telephone: 01706 924816
Date: Friday 13th May 2016

Dear Councillor

Heywood Township Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Heywood Township Committee to be 
held in Phoenix Centre - L/Cpl Stephen Shaw MC Way, Heywood, OL10 1LR on 
Monday 23rd May 2016 commencing at 6.30 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of Interest 
which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the Code of Conduct or 
contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and Committee Services Team 
at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Heywood Township Committee Membership 2016/17
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick
Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Alan McCarthy
Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Carol Wardle

Public Document Pack



Rochdale Borough Council

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

Monday, 23 May 2016 at 6.30 pm

Phoenix Centre - L/Cpl Stephen Shaw MC Way, Heywood, OL10 1LR

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Appointment of Chair for 2016/2017 

2.  Appointment of Vice-Chair for 2016/2017 

3.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

4.  Open Forum (6.30-7.00pm) 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise 
any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township.

5.  Local Policing Changes - Presentation 

6.  Cartwheel Community Arts - Presentation 

7.  J19/A6045 Link Road - Presentation 

8.  Minutes 4 - 5

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Heywood Township 
Committee held on 7th March 2016

9.  Heywood Township Delegation Arrangements 2016/17 6 - 10

10.  Heywood Township Committee – Appointments 2016/17 11 - 13

11.  Townships Plan 2015 & 2016 14 - 18

12.  Heywood Township Funds 2016/17 19 - 48

13.  Summit Estate Area, Heywood - Objections Received to Proposed 
20mph Speed Limit 

49 - 65





P
age 1

A
genda Item

 3



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 3



HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday 7th March 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Dutton (Chair); Councillors Beswick, Susan Emmott, 
McCarthy, O'Rourke, Robinson, Rush and Wardle

OFFICERS:  S. Hay, S. Reay and D. Lodwig (Neighbourhoods Directorate), 
D. Higgins (Children’s Services Directorate) and A. James (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Inspector S. Hanlon (Greater Manchester Police) and 
approximately 20 members of the public

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
58 There were no declarations of interest.

PRESENTATION - NHS RESTRUCTURE
59 The Committee considered a presentation from Dr Michael Taylor relating to 
proposals to merge York House Surgery and Argyle Street Surgery in Heywood. Dr 
Taylor advised that for the foreseeable future, patients should not experience any 
major changes in the frontline services they received and that the main changes 
would be to the ‘back office’ functions.

Dr Taylor also gave an overview of proposals relating to how Greater Manchester 
Devolution would have an impact for local residents in relation to General Practice 
provision in Heywood.

DECIDED – that Dr Taylor be thanked for his presentation.

PRESENTATION - YOUTH SERVICE
60 The Committee considered a presentation relating to the Youth Service in 
Heywood. Diane Higgins, Lead Youth Worker, updated the Committee on youth 
service provision in Heywood and Kirsty McGrory spoke about the different activities 
and events that the Youth Forum was involved with.

DECIDED – that Diane Higgins and Kirsty McGrory be thanked for their 
presentation. 

OPEN FORUM
61 The following matters were raised as part of the Open Forum:-

a) Fly Tipping
The Committee considered questions from Mrs J Lees and Dr M Corns about 

the amount of fly tipping in Heywood.

Mrs Lees made specific reference to incidences at Heywood Cricket Club and 
Crimble Lane/Crimble Woods and requested details of the costs to the Hewyood 
Township. Mrs Lees also suggested that the costs of the Council removing large 
household items was too high and that residents may be using cheaper alternatives 
that could be contributing to increased incidents of fly tipping.

Both Mrs Lees and Dr Corns also asked what was being done to alleviate this 
problem.

Page 4

Agenda Item 8



The Township and Engagement Officer read out a response from the Council’s 
Environmental Management Service which stated that fly tipping was a concern to 
the Council and that a combination of site clearance and environmental enforcement 
was used to alleviate the problem and that this was from a central budget and not 
from Heywood Township resources. Prosecution of offenders was also undertaken 
where appropriate.

b) Friends of Queen Park
Mr W Lomax sought the Committee’s support for a project to convert one of 

the tennis courts at Queen’s Park into a multi-use games area. The Committee 
requested further details on the project.

c) Voluntary Groups
Mr H Mills suggested that it would be useful for Heywood voluntary groups to 

meet and join together on projects like funding bids. Members supported Groups 
working together. Councillor McCarthy, the Council’s Armed Forces Lead Member 
agreed to take up any issues that Armed Forces/Veterans Groups may be having 
with the appropriate Officers.

Matters relating to dog fouling and dogs being let off leads in the Heywood Gardens 
of Remembrance were also raised.

d) M62 Motorway – Junction 19 
Mr Cursaro spoke about concerns he had raised on previous occasions about noise 
nuisance near his home on Middleton Road from contractors working at Junction 19 
of the M62 Motorway and that he had not received any correspondence on the 
issues he had raised. The Highways Manager undertook to look into why Mr Cursaro 
had not received any letters about the issues he had raised. Inspector Hanlon also 
confirmed that Police Officers had looked into parking in the area and had been 
instructed to issue tickets where appropriate.

In response to a comment from Mr Cursaro about a lack of bins in the Middleton 
Road area, Councillor Beswick confirmed that Eon would be replacing any bins they 
had removed from lamp posts and other additional bins had been ordered.

e) M62 Junction 19 Link Road
Mrs A Jones asked what progress was being made in regard to the proposed 

M62 Junction 19 link road as she had not heard anything despite living in the area 
potentially affected. The Highways Manager informed the Committee that the 
scheme was still in the design stage and that he would contact Mrs Jones direct with 
an update.

MINUTES - HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
62 The Minutes of the meeting of the Heywood Township Committee held on 4th 
January 2016 were considered.

In regard to Minute 55 – Heywood Township Highways Maintenance Programme 
2016 – 2018, North Ward Councillors confirmed that a meeting had taken place with 
Officers about proposals for the Starkey Street/Bamford Road/Queens Park Road 
area and that a report setting out all the options would be circulated to all Members of 
the Committee for consideration in due course.

DECIDED – that the Minutes of the meeting of the Heywood Township 
Committee held on 4th January 2016 be approved as a correct record.

Page 5



Subject:      Township Committee – Delegation 
Arrangements 2016/17

Status:  For Publication

Report to: Heywood Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Councillor Daalat Ali Cabinet 
Member for Communities & Neighbourhoods

Date: 23rd May 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources
Author Email: michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk    

Author: Michael Garraway

Tel: Tel: 01706 924716

Key Decision: No

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 The recommendations are presented to enable the Committee to confirm its delegated 
decision making arrangements for the 2016/17 Municipal Year.

2 Recommendations

2.1     The Committee confirm the Sub-Committee structure of the Heywood Township
          Committee, comprising the Heywood Township Delegated Sub-
          Committee and the Heywood Township Planning Sub-Committee.

2.2     The Committee approves the delegation arrangements to the Heywood Township 
          Delegated Sub-Committee, as contained within the Scheme of Delegation 
          to Township Committees and the terms of reference as detailed in Appendix 1 to
          this report.

2.3      The Committee notes that the terms of reference of the Planning Sub-Committee are 
contained within the Schedule of Delegation Arrangements for Development and 
Related Matters. 

Reason for recommendation

2.4 The Committee agrees the delegation arrangements to ensure that decisions are 
made in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committees of the 
Council’s Constitution.  Failure to agree to the delegation arrangements can open the 
risk that the Township Committee is unable to undertake the functions of the 
Committee.

3 Background

3.1 The Scheme of Delegation appended to the Council’s Constitution delegates 
Executive and non-Executive functions to the Township Committees. The Council has 
approved an approach for developing the role of Township Committees, giving 
increased responsibility for budgets and day-to-day delivery of services. The Township 

Page 6

Agenda Item 9

mailto:michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk


Committees now hold responsibility for the delivery of the following Council services 
and are requested to confirm existing delegation arrangements to carry out these 
functions:–

 Environmental Management (excluding Refuse Collection and Recycling and 
Bereavement Services)

 Highways and Engineering
 Community Centres
 Libraries
 Development Control
 Township Funds
 Leisure Projects - commissioning

3.2 The Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee currently exercises formal powers 
as detailed at Appendix 1, as a  Sub-Committee for dealing with ’urgent’ issues on 
behalf of the Township Committee and for making grant approvals and decisions on 
devolved budgets and Township Funds.  

3.3 The Heywood Township Planning Sub-Committee works to a delegation scheme 
contained within the Schedule of Delegation Arrangements for Development and 
Related Matters.

Alternatives considered

3.4 Township Committee, if so minded, could resolve to maintain arrangements as 
confirmed by the Township Committee on 26th May 2015, or adopt alternative Sub-
Committee arrangements, in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Township 
Committees of the Council’s Constitution.

3.5 To not approve delegation arrangements could delay decisions being made by 
Township Committee and Sub-Committees.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The Committee is being asked to confirm its existing delegation arrangements to 
ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory procedural 
requirements.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications to this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The Committee is being asked to confirm its Sub-Committee arrangements, in 
accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committees of the Council’s 
Constitution, to ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and 
statutory procedural requirements.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 There no specific risks associated with this report

Page 7



9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
There are no background papers to this report.

Page 8



Page 1 of 2

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
(Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee)

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

1. To receive and consider the minutes arising from meetings of the 
Ward/Area Fora and other Township working Parties and related bodies, 
referring matter of concern to the Township Committee.

2. To exercise the following delegated powers as provided in the Scheme of 
Delegation to Township Committees
A. Authority to determine certain applications for Public Entertainment 

licenses and Gaming Permits.  Note - this delegation to be removed 
on full implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling 
Act 2005

B. Determination of objections/representations in respect of the 
Appointment of Hackney Carriage Stands

C. Urgent designation of a Conservation Area
D. To deal with urgent matters within the remit of the Heywood 

Township Committee

3. To exercise under delegated powers the following powers of the Heywood  
Township Committee (as contained within the Scheme of Delegation to 
Township Committees)
A. Confirmation of Traffic Regulation Orders which are the subject of 

objection by persons directly affected by the proposal (i.e. in 
occupation of premises in the immediate vicinity of the proposal)

B. Closures or diversions of highways, including footpaths and 
bridleways, deemed to be contentious by the Director of Highways 
and Engineering

C. Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (Road Traffic Regulation 
Act 1984, S.9)

D. Traffic regulation for special areas, for example, Country Park ( 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.22)

E. Pedestrian crossings, for example, pelican and zebra crossings 
(Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.23)

F. Street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.29)
G. Byelaws for street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, 

S.31)
H. Installation of road humps which are the subject of significant 

objections by people directly affected (as determined by the 
Director of Highways and Engineering)

I. Making Up of Private Streets – Part IX of Highways Act 1980
(i) The private street works code
(ii) General
(iii) The advance payment code

Page 9



Page 2 of 2

J. Power to determine applications to make Orders under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 to add footpaths to the Definitive Map

K. Power to make Footpath Creation Orders under the Highways Act 
1980 S.26

L. Reclassification of roads used as public paths under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981

M. Power to designate public footpaths as cycle tracks under the Cycle 
Tracks Act 1984

N. Consideration of any other matter that may be referred to the 
Township relating to the regulation of highways, footpaths, 
bridleways etc. 

4. To have full responsibility for all aspects of devolution (including any 
related delegated budgets and Township Funds) and the implementation 
and development of the Township Plan.

5. To receive reports from ‘devolved’ and ‘influenced’ Services detailing their 
response to the Township priorities in the Township Plan and the 
development of their respective Service Plans to reflect those priorities.

6. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township 
Funds), to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any 
devolved funding are met or are capable of being met before any 
decisions are made.

7. To consider and comment on quarterly monitoring reports on devolved 
funding with a subsequent report to Heywood  Township Committee.

8. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township 
Funds, ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any 
devolved funding are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions 
are made.

Page 10



Subject: Heywood Township Committee 
Appointments 2016/17

Status:  For Publication

Report to: Heywood Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Councillor Daalat Ali Cabinet 
Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods  

Date: 23rd May 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email: Michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk 

Author: Michael Garraway

Tel: 01706 924716

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To consider the appointments, for the 2016/17 Municipal Year of the Chair and Vice 
Chair of the Township Sub-Committees; the appointment of Members to Heywood 
Township’s Sub-Committees; and the appointment to various Working Groups and 
Other Bodies.

2 Recommendations

2.1       The Township Committee considers the composition and appointments of
            Members to the Heywood Delegated Sub-Committee and the Heywood Township
            Planning Sub-Committee;

2.2       The Township Committee considers the appointment of Chair and Vice Chair of 
            the above mentioned Sub-Committees;

2.3 The Township Committee appoints Members to the various “Other Bodies” as
Detailed in paragraph 3.4.

2.4 Reasons for Recommendation

The appointment of Sub-Committees is required to enable the undertaking of 
delegated functions

3 Background

3.1 At the Council meeting held on 18th May 2011 Council resolved that the allowances of 
the Chairs of Planning Sub-Committees be merged with those of Vice-Chairs of 
Township Committees. 

3.2 Members are asked to make appointments of Chair, Vice-Chair, Members and 
Substitutes to Township Sub-Committees.  In relation to the appointment of Substitute 
Members, the Committee is asked to note that the number of substitute Members 

Page 11

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk


appointed by a Political Group to any Committee or Sub- Committee should not 
exceed the number of ordinary seats held by that Group on that Committee or Sub-
Committee, or three Substitute Members in total.

3.3 Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee 
The Sub-Committee either exercises delegated powers or acts on any matter within 
the Committee’s Terms of Reference which requires an urgent decision. Members are 
requested to formally appoint the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Sub-Committee and 
determine the composition of the Sub-Committee. The Sub-Committees 2015/16 
membership comprised all nine Heywood Township Members.

3.4 Heywood Township Planning Sub-Committee 
In 2015/16 six Members (on the basis of two Members per Ward) and two Substitute 
Members were appointed to the Township Planning Sub-Committee.

Membership of this Sub-Committee during 2015/16 was: Councillor Susan Emmott 
(Chair), Councillor Rush (Vice Chair), Councillors Beswick, McCarthy, O’Rourke and 
Robinson 
Substitute Members were Councillors Dutton, Lambert and Wardle.

Members are requested to formally appoint the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Sub-
Committee, determine the composition of the Sub-Committee and appoint Substitute 
Members for the Sub-Committee.

3.5 Other Bodies and Charitable Trusts

Members are requested to consider appointments to the following bodies:

(a) East Lancashire Railway Trust
The Township Committee is requested to appoint two individuals to serve on the 
above Trust. Appointments in 2015/16 were Councillor Dutton and Mr B. Davies.

(b) Heywood Magic Board
The Township Committee is requested to appoint Members to serve on the above 
Board. Members appointed during 2015/16 were Councillors Dutton, Susan Emmott, 
Robinson and Wardle.

(c) Township Older Persons Champion
The Township Committee appoint one Member to serve the above role. Councillor 
Robinson undertook this role during 2015/16

           Alternatives considered

3.5      There were no alternatives considered. The proper appointment of Sub-
Committees is required to permit the undertaking of delegated functions in accordance 
with statutory and procedural requirements. Appointments to Working Groups and 
Other Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and 
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

4 Financial Implications

4.1      There are no financial implications to this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The appointment of Sub-Committees is required to enable the undertaking of 

Page 12



delegated Council functions and the Constitution of the Council requires the Township 
Committee to appoint Chairs and Vice Chairs of Sub-Committees.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications to this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council 2014/15 retains the Township 
Committees and will devolve a range of services for the Township’s direction, which 
will be managed through the annual Township Plans by the Township Committee.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 Not applicable

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

There are no background papers for this report

Page 13



Subject: Townships Plan 2015 & 2016 Status:  Publication

Report to: Heywood Township Committee
                    Middleton Township Committee 
                    Pennines Township Committee
                    Rochdale Township Committee                                                                                                      

Cabinet Member: Daalat Ali, Lead Member for 
Neighbourhoods & Community

Date: Monday, 23 May 2016
                    Thursday 26 May 2016
                    Tuesday 31st  May 2016
                    Wednesday 1st June 2016  

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods

Author Email:    valery.white@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Val White

Tel: 01706 924858

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To ask Members to agree the priorities contained within the Townships Plan 
2015 & 2016, contained at Appendix ‘A’.

2 Recommendations

2.1   That members approve the Townships Plan 2015 & 2016.    

2.2 The plan takes Townships to the end of 2016, when a new Townships Plan will      
be developed in line with the new Corporate Plan, and in line with the Corporate 
Priorities.

2.3 Members are asked to approve the plan to allow the Townships to focus on local 
priorities in line with the Council’s three key priorities – Prosperity, People and Place.

3 Background

3.1 The Townships Plan includes strategies and objectives identified to meet the 
priorities identified by each Township. It will also guide and direct the use of 
devolved budgets, including the Township Funds, for the financial year 
2016/17.

3.2 Members will be consulted on development of a new three-year Township Plan 
following the introduction of the new Corporate Plan. 

4 Alternatives considered

4.1 No alternatives have been considered.

Page 14

Agenda Item 11



5 Financial Implications

5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. Township funds are 
monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will continue to 
be presented to future Committees on a regular basis.

6  Legal Implications

6.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

7 Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

8 Corporate Priorities

8.1 Appendix ‘A’ details the strategy for each individual Township. The Townships 
Plan will be developed in line with the new Corporate Plan. The Townships 
Plan focuses on the Council’s three key priorities of Prosperity, People and 
Place.

9. Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1 There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 
report.

10. Equalities Impacts

10.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report.

10.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Townships Plan 2015 & 2016 Appendix ‘A’

Page 15



Heywood Township Directorate Plan 2015 and 2016

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New v3 Page  1  Of  3 20 April 2016

HTS011 To work with Members and Officers to look at developing Community Hubs 31 December 2016  
Objectives: Community Hub
The Common Good Group established and has met twice and is still being developed further.

HTS001 Target new and other areas of the community to widen the range of people engaged 
with, schools and multi faith communities  in particular 

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Encourage wider community engagement and participation
The Common Good Meeting is established and has met twice, at The Civic Centre and Crimble Croft Community Centre at varying times to attract 
all. The Meeting will develop, presentations from Groups will be given, CVS to attend the next Meeting. PACT Meetings re-established and two have 
taken place and Meetings will now be every quarter and Council Officers attend. Town Web Site set up to improve Community cohesion, 
communication and involvement.

HTS002 Work with partners, businesses, voluntary sector and the community to strengthen 
links, encourage participation and ownership.

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Support community projects and self-help initiatives
Work ongoing with groups such as Heywood in Bloom to clean and plant up disused areas of land, and Heywood Angling Society to provide 
community and educational facilities at Mutual Mills or Bamford Road Allotment Society. Working with the Friends of Queens Park to establish 
community rooms and visitor centre in Queens Park Lodge. Work ongoing with Recovery Republic, charities, East Lancashire Railway, Friends of 
Hopwood Park.

HTS003 Offer quality service provision, choice and engagement for Heywood~s young 
people.

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Maintain the range of activities  for young people
Work ongoing with The Heywood Activities Partnership, together with provision of funding to provide activities across the Township. Individual 
Grants given, Music Festival Funded. 

HTS004 Work with partner agencies to encourage neighbourliness, cohesion and a greater 
sense of belonging. Continue to develop relationships with active citizens and community 
mediators.

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Develop and encourage active citizens and community mediators
Promoted at the Common Good Meetings, liaison with GMP ongoing to identify and better use of active citizens

P
age 16



Heywood Township Directorate Plan 2015 and 2016

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New v3 Page  2  Of  3 20 April 2016

HTS005 Work with partners to establish alternative methods of communication to 
compensate for the introduction of online PACT meetings. Support Community Safety 
initiatives that tackle crime and disorder

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Community Safety and GMP 
Re-establishment of Heywood Police Station as Operational Deployment Station for the Neighbourhood Policing Team. PACTS re-established with 
Council Officers attending for a joint meeting. Greater Manchester Police and Crime Commissioner Tony Lloyd attended a public meeting in 
Heywood. Crime prevention initiatives funded.

HTS006 Continue to support the Community Covenants and the Armed Forces Community 31 December 2016 
Objectives: Armed forces Community Covenants
Heywood Armed Forces Covenant in place and close work the signatories ongoing, such as Armed Forces Day Parade, Remembrance Parade and 
Services. Veterans Associations and Community Groups have been consulted on Parade routes and major change has been implemented...Thanks 
go to Councillor Alan McCarthy, as Lead Member for the Armed Forces for the magnificent upgrade to Heywood Memorial Gardens and Cenotaph.   
..

HTS007 Support Heywood Business Group and Heywood Town Team. Explore initiatives to 
encourage new business to the town and improve the aestheticsof the Town Centre 

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Work with Partners and businesses to improve the economic viability of Heywood
Township has active representation at all meetings, and devolved Town Team funding will support this strategy. Town Centre Fund grants are being 
used, with business consultation, to improve the Town Centre and attract businesses and users. A Town Team Web Site has been funded and is 
under development.

HTS008 Progression of the link road 31 December 2016 
Objectives: Junction 19 Link Road
Options are under negotiation. Regeneration Members Group established.

HTS009 Continue to reduce the number of grot spots, encourage community ownership and 
responsibility for their communities, maintain Green Flag status, utilise the unpaid work team 
and support a safe and efficient strategic highways network

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Cleaner, greener and safer environment 

P
age 17



Heywood Township Directorate Plan 2015 and 2016

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New v3 Page  3  Of  3 20 April 2016

HTS010 Actively engage with local media to share and promote our achievements and 
successes

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Raise Township Profile 
Good relationship with The Heywood Advertiser and many positive articles published and many events promoted and praised. 

HTS012 Support the already successful range of Township events, empower further the 
management capabilities of community members and groups

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Events Management
Successful annual events have grown creating increased community engagement.1940’s event gained national recognition, Christmas Festival, 
Music Festival and Charities Fete.  
Many thanks to the Mayor during 2014/15, Carol Wardle,  for promoting and attending Heywood Events.Community leaders and Groups consulted 
with and listened to resulting in major change to Parade routes.

HTS013 To work with Council Services and partners to progress the allocation and 
monitoring of Township funds, in line with issues raised within our community.

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Management of Township Funds 
Funding continues to be utilised to increase the value of community spaces and to respond and to deliver on the priorities identified within 
Heywood’s Township Plan

P
age 18



 

Subject: Heywood Township Funds 2016/17 Status: For Publication

Report to: Heywood Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Community

Date: Monday, 23 May 2016
 

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods

Author Email:    sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Sharron Worrall

Tel: Tel: 01706 924802

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 A review of revenue and capital expenditure during 2015/16 and provide options for 
the allocation of funds in 2016/17.

1.2 Members to approve Heywood Township Funds terms and conditions, and agree 
delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood Township 
revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2015/16 (Appendix 1, 2 and 2A).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2015/16 (Appendix 3) and 
feedback received to date for some of the projects funded (Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Heywood Township Funds to funding streams in 
2016/17 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Heywood Township revenue and 
capital funds for 2016/17 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Heywood Township Funds 
2016/17 as detailed in 3.6 of this report.

Reason for recommendation

2.6 Management of the Heywood Township Fund is delegated to the Heywood Township 
Delegated Sub Committee.

2.7 Heywood Township Funds are allocated to projects/schemes that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 19

Agenda Item 12



2.8 To enable Committee to monitor and review the use of the Heywood Township Funds 
to ensure continued efficient and effective use of Township Funds.

3. Background

3.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood Township 
revenue and capital funds 2015/16 (Appendix 1, 2 and 2A).  The final outturn for 
financial year 2015/16 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported to the next 
scheduled funding committee.

3.2 A review of Heywood Township revenue and capital funds has been undertaken 
(Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams suggestions, the terms and 
conditions of the funds and the administration procedures for grant applications for 
2016/17.

3.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township Office relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of grants; 
whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their objectives and 
evidence their successes, and ensure the completed projects funded complied with 
the terms and conditions of the fund.  In 2015/16 grants awarded and projects funded 
made a difference to the local community with improvements to local facilities, 
increased social interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All 
successful applicants are informed a condition of the grant is they complete a Project 
Evaluation Form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of evaluation information 
received to date on projects funded as detailed in Appendix 4.

3.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township Funds 
2015/16 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of Township Funds to 
funding streams in 2016/17 as detailed in Appendix 5.

3.5 Terms and conditions for Heywood Township revenue and capital funds have been 
updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 2016/17 
(Appendix 6).

3.6 Members are asked to agree to the delegation arrangements for Heywood Township 
Funds 2016/17 as follows:

a) Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of 
Heywood Township Committee, may make decisions on the allocation of funds to 
all projects for £5,000 and under.

b) Heywood Township Officers will refer projects over £5,000 to the next Heywood 
Township Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

c) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward 
Councillors to seek their support.  Decisions on Ward Funds are delegated to the 
Principal Townships Officer in consultation with the Ward Councillors with the 
decision based on majority agreement.  Any disputes concerning allocation of 
Ward Funds will be referred to the next Heywood Township Delegated Sub 
Committee for decision.

d) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Heywood Township 
Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all Members are aware of projects that have 
been approved.

Page 20



Alternatives considered

3.7 In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the allocation 
of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

4. Financial Implications

4.1 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use of the 
Heywood Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

4.2 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will 
be presented to future Committees

5. Legal Implications

5.1 Members are reminded that under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the 
voluntary sector and charities the Council has made a commitment to consider the 
impact on volunteers, stakeholders and service users of any changes to the financial 
arrangements, to work with them to mitigate such impact and to provide at least three 
months’ notice of such changes.

6. Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7. Corporate Priorities

7.1 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to meet their 
respective Township priorities and deliver actions to meet those priorities.  This report 
asks Members to consider how Township Funds 2016/17 are allocated in order to do 
this.

7.2 The Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council retains Township Committees and will 
devolve a range of services to Township direction, managed through the annual 
Township Plan which is reviewed on a quarterly basis.

8. Risk Assessment Implications

8.1 There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

Careful consideration has been given to the potential equality impact of the proposed 
projects.  No adverse impacts are expected and it is anticipated that the projects will 
benefit all sections of the community.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection
None N/A

Page 21



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2015/16           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 
Budget b/f 2014/15 37,906         85.27% 96.01%

Base Budget 2015/16 58,000         

Income/Adjustments 2015/16 22,839         

Budget Available 2015/16 118,745       

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 101,254       

Commitments 12,757         

Total Actual + Commitments 114,011       

Budget Remaining 2015/16 4,734           

Forecast Outturn 118,745       

Potential under/(over)spend 2015/16 -                   

Fund

 Balance b/f 

2014/15

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2015/16

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments

2015/16 

 Revised 

Budget 

2015/16 

 Actuals to 

Period

         £ 

 Committed 

to Period

     £ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements to 

Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period      

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2015/16       

£ 

Projects Fund 23,235         42,000         -                      65,235         17,148          7,880             -                     40,100           65,128    107             

Events Fund 5,251           8,000           3,350               16,601         16,276          325                -                     -                     16,601    -                  

Town Centre Fund 3,267           -                   19,489             22,756         22,756          -                     -                     -                     22,756    0                 

North Ward Fund 2,723           3,000           -                      5,723           804               2,552             -                     1,170             4,526      1,197          

West Ward Fund -                   3,000           -                      3,000           600               -                     -                     2,400             3,000      -                  

Hopwood Hall Ward 3,430           2,000           -                      5,430           -                   2,000             -                     -                     2,000      3,430          

Total 37,906         58,000         22,839             118,745       57,584          12,757           -                     43,670           114,011  4,734          

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2015/16

P
age 22



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2015/16           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2014/15) 56,966         89.33% 90.95%

Base Budget 2015/16 53,600         

Income/Adjustments 2015/16

Budget Available 2015/16 110,566       

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 98,768         

Commitments 1,790           

Total Actual + Commitments 100,558       

Budget Remaining 2015/16 10,008         

Forecast Outturn 110,566       

Potential under/(over)spend 2015/16 -                   

Project

 Balance b/f 

2014/15

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2015/16

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments

2015/16

£ 

 Revised 

Budget 

2015/16

£ 

 Actuals/

Virement to 

Period

         £ 

 Committed 

to Period     

£ 

 Total to 

Period

      £ 

 Budget 

Remaining

2015/16

£ 
HTC/01/13 Heywood Cemetery Improvements 16,000         -                   -                       16,000         16,000          -                     16,000          -                  

HTC/01/14 Heywood War Memorial 8,400           -                   8,400           8,400            -                     8,400            -                  

HTC/04/14 Lighting columns for passageway 

between Newhouse Road and Sunningdale Drive
3,811           -                   -                       3,811           3,811            -                     3,811            -                  

HTC/06/14 Pedestrian guard rail outside White 

Lion Public House
1,790           -                   -                       1,790           -                    1,790             1,790            -                  

HTC/07/14 Heywood Township Litter Bins 5,000           1,930           -                       6,930           6,930            -                     6,930            -                  

HTC/01/15 Summit Estate 20mph Scheme 18,235         18,235         18,235          -                     18,235          -                  

HTC/02/15 Merrick Street Lighting Scheme 7,000           7,000           7,000            -                     7,000            -                  

HTC/03/15 Withington Street Bollards 1,125           1,125           1,125            -                     1,125            -                  

HTC/04/15 Heap Street Verge Removal 2,150           2,150           2,150            -                     2,150            -                  

HTC/07/15 Bury & Rochdale Old Road Road 

Marking and Signing Scheme
8,400           8,400           8,400            -                     8,400            -                  

HTC/09/15 Heywood Cemetery Road Entrance 

Improvements
25,021         25,021         25,021          -                     25,021          -                  

HTC/10/15 Heywood Hall Road Grass Verge 

Replacement
1,696           1,696           1,696            -                     1,696            -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                    -                     -                    -                  

Unallocated Funds 2014/15 21,965         (11,957)        -                       10,008         -                    -                     10,008          10,008        

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                    -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                    -                     -                    -                  

Total 56,966         53,600         -                       110,566       98,768          1,790             110,566        10,008        

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2015/16

P
age 23



APPENDIX 2A

OVERALL SUMMARY - ARMED FORCES FUND           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 
Budget b/f (2014/15) 707              100.00% 100.00%

Base Budget 2015/16 -                   

Income/Adjustments 2015/16

Budget Available 2015/16 707              

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 707              

Commitments -                   

Total Actual + Commitments 707              

Budget Remaining 2015/16 -                   

Forecast Outturn 707              

Potential under/(over)spend 2015/16 -                   

Project

 Balance b/f 

2014/15

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2015/16

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments

2015/16

£ 

 Revised 

Budget 

2015/16

£ 

 Actuals/

Virement to 

Period

         £ 

 Committed 

to Period    

 £ 

 Total to 

Period

      £ 

 Budget 

Remaining

2015/16

£ 

AFH/01/14 Heywood Memorial Gardens Upgrade 707              -                   -                       707              707               -                     707               -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

Unallocated Funds 2015/16 -                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

Total 707              -                   -                       707              707               -                     707               -                  

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2015/16

P
age 24



1 

APPENDIX 3 

 

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2015/16 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects 
Fund 

£42,000 
Base Budget 

2015/16 
 

b/f 2014/15 
£23,235 

The Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Heywood Township. 
 
This fund has been used to deliver and support 14 projects approved in 2015/16 in addition to the allocation of 
£28,500 for a dedicated Heywood Township Clean and Green Team for a period of 12 weeks as agreed at Heywood 
Township Delegated Sub Committee 14 July 2015.  The variety of projects funded in 2015/16 included equipment for 
a new community café at Sandon House operating alongside the luncheon club to encourage community integration; 
reinstate lighting at Darnhill Kickpitch during the Winter months to provide young people with a safe venue to meet to 
participate in sports or socialise and reduce anti-social behaviour in the vicinity of the shops; the construction of model 
railway layouts in the club room of Heywood Model Railway Group to enable them to engage members both young 
and old in the hobby and attract new members; improvements to a grass verge on Melton Close involving removal of 
a tree that was damaging the footway; programme of healthy activity, competition and support for young people in 
every primary and secondary school in Heywood with 12 weeks of rugby league coaching and a series of inter-school 
matches/festival to select participants to represent the Township; wreaths for the Somme anniversary event and 
Heywood Charities Fete parade and event held in Queen's Park celebrating tradition and community heritage with a 
variety of activities and entertainment. 
 
This fund has an unallocated amount of £107 and committed amount of £7,880 to be carried forward to 2016/17. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund retains a base budget of £42,000 in 2016/17 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

Events Fund £8,000 
Base Budget 

2015/16 
 

£3,350 
Income 

 
b/f 2014/15 

£5,251 
 

The Events Fund has resourced a number of successful events in Heywood during 2015/16 that have been supported 
by hardworking volunteers or managed by Heywood Business Group.  These events have included the Heywood 
Christmas Festival; activities to mark the occasion of the Queen becoming Britain's longest reigning monarch; a music 
extravaganza in Queen’s Park; a children's/music event staged at Recovery Republic's Community Wellbeing Centre 
to raise awareness of the range of services and activities available to the local with an emphasis on mental health and 
recovery support; Remembrance Sunday and a celebration of 50 years of civic twinned town friendship. 
 
Heywood Township received £3,350 from Rochdale Council’s Feelgood activities budget to allocate to events during 
2015/16.  Committed funds of £325 will be carried forward to 2016/17. 

Township Officers recommend the Events Fund retains a base budget of £8,000 in 2016/17. 

P
age 25



2 

 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

North Ward 
Fund 

£3,000 
Base Budget 

2015/16 
 

b/f 2014/15 
£2,723 

Each Heywood Township Ward received £3,000 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £2,000) to allocate to smaller 
revenue projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 
local community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues supported 
by Ward Councillors that necessitated a quick response. 
 
These funds were used to support a variety of projects during 2015/16: 
 
North Ward Fund financed a contribution to the removal and replacement with tarmac of the grass verge on Heywood 
Hall Road to address the problem of vehicle overrun/parking on the grassed area; support for Heywood Food Bank; 
installation of bollards on Park Terrace; establish a new luncheon club at Back O’ Th’ Moss Community Centre; 
provision of a penguin educational recycling bin in Harwood Park Primary School playground as a joint working 
project with Heywood in Bloom to encourage positive pupil behaviour concerning litter and recycling and hire of a skip 
for a community clean up.  Committed funds of £2,552 and an uncommitted amount of £1,197 at year end will be 
carried forward into 2016/17. 
 
West Ward Fund financed the installation of fences at properties on Argyle Street and Dunrobin Close and cutting 
back large conifer trees on Kent Walk. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward Fund have committed funds towards environmental improvements within the ward.  Committed 
funds of £2,000 and an uncommitted amount of £3,430 to be carried forward into 2016/17. 

West Ward 
Fund 

£3,000 
Base Budget 

2015/16 
 

b/f 2014/15 
£0 

Hopwood 
Hall Ward 
Fund 

£2,000 
Base Budget 

2015/16 
 

b/f 2014/15 
£3,430 

Township Officers recommend the Ward Funds retain a base budget of £8,000 pro-rata in 2016/17. 

Town Centre 
Fund 

£19,489 
Income/ 

Adjustments 
 

b/f 2014/15 
£3,267 

The Town Centre Fund from Rochdale Council’s Economic Affairs Unit was used to resource projects that assist the 
town centre within Heywood Township to grow, prosper and diversity.  The fund was used to support creative ideas 
and to generate increased business and interest in shopping at the local town centre/high streets in Heywood. 
 
Heywood Township received £22,756 in 2015/16 from Rochdale Council’s Economic Affairs Unit.  This fund has been 
used to deliver and support 5 projects including the design and management of a website to promote Heywood Town 
and support the activities of the town's many voluntary groups and charities, co-ordinate and publicise events, 
showcase amenities available within the town and promote local businesses; Heywood in Bloom’s creation of 
attractive floral displays throughout Heywood Town Centre with a new tiered planter and hanging baskets; stalls and 
appliances for weekly Farmers Market/Sunday Market in Heywood and Heywood 1940’s Day event in 2016 to raise 
the profile of Heywood, promote the area to surrounding towns as a place to shop and visit to provide new 
opportunities for local independent retailers. 

P
age 26



3 

 

 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £53,600 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2014/15 

£56,966 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver projects that benefit the Township’s community and environment, and 
realise the Township priorities in 2015/16.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the 
community. 
 
The Capital Fund has been used to finance 7 projects in 2015/16.  The variety of projects funded during 2015/16 
included  introduction of 20mph zone on Summit Estate;  installation of four lighting columns on Merrick Street  to 

address concerns raised about the lack of lighting in the area; new bollards installed on Withington Street  to prevent 
vehicles parking on the footway; removal of the grass verge and flag on Heap Street  to prevent the area being 
churned up by vehicle override and create a new neat and level footway for pedestrians;  road marking and signing 
scheme on  Bury and Rochdale Old Road to warn drivers of the road layout and reduce vehicle speeds; 
improvements to the entrance of Heywood Cemetery with high quality landscape features and contribution to the 
removal and replacement with tarmac of the grass verge on Heywood Hall Road to address the problem of vehicle 
overrun/parking on the grassed area  
 
An unallocated amount from this fund of £10,008 and committed funds of £1,790 will be carried forward to 2016/17. 
 

Township Officers recommend that the Capital Fund retains a base budget of £53,600 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

Armed Forces 
Fund 

b/f 2014/15 
£707 

Heywood Township received a budget of £20,000 for a four year period in 2014/15 for updating and enhancing 
existing memorials and introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-18). 
 
This fund was used to support improvements to Heywood War Memorial and Gardens. 
 

P
age 27



APPENDIX 4 

Recipient: Heywood in Bloom 

Project: Festival of Flowers & Town Centre Planter 

Fund: Town Centre Fund 

Awarded: £3,918.10 & £1,800 

Heywood In Bloom is a group that aims to promote the conservation, protection and 
improvement of the physical and natural environment.  Members of the group are interested 
in encouraging local people to help improve their town through gardening.  Each year 
Heywood in Bloom organises and supports Heywood’s entry in to the North West in Bloom 
competition that aspires to encourage the improvement of our surroundings through the 
imaginative use of trees, shrubs, flowers and landscaping.  It also aims to achieve a litter free 
and sustainable environment.  Communities from across the North West are required to 
demonstrate their ability to create and maintain attractive environments that benefit residents 
and visitors alike. 

Heywood’s Festival of Flowers project created an attractive display of 45 hanging baskets 
along Church Street, Market Street and York Street.  Small businesses in Heywood came 
together to discuss and get involved in the project.  Shops were encouraged to add to the 
displays themselves with more planting to enhance their frontages and make their premises 

“The wider community have continued to 
remark on `how well looked after` 
Heywood is.  Local residents have been 
encouraged to take more responsibility 
for their area.  More `pride of place` has 
resulted from the attractive planting 
spreading out across the Town” 
Ellen Wintle-Yates 
Chair 

Heywood in Bloom 

Page 28



more attractive to customers.  The hanging baskets will be replanted by Heywood in Bloom 
members each spring so the Festival of Flowers will continue for years to come. 

A replacement planter has created an attractive display adjacent to the Phoenix Centre and 
overlooking the main road.  This planter with its four tiers filled with beautiful seasonal 
flowers in the vicinity of L/Cpl Stephen Shaw M.C. Way and Pte Anthony Palmer V.C. 
Parade, and also adjacent to the Memorial Gardens creates a feature that recognises the 
importance of this dedicated area in the town centre. 

Heywood in Bloom presented the town at its best when the judges from North West in Bloom 
arrived on 15 July 2015.  Some of the many sites in Heywood to benefit from the group 
working with local businesses, the community and individual gardeners were TOPS Business 
Centre, Smethurst Street Community Garden and Roeacre Court sheltered housing scheme, 
the Phoenix Brewery, Heywood Railway Station, local authority parks, a sensory garden at 
the Phoenix Centre and an allotment on Hornby Street to be cultivated by the Harwood Park 
Primary School.  The judges visited 21 sites in the town, eight of which were to be entered 
for the Royal Horticultural Association ‘It’s Your Neighbourhood’ award which recognises 
effort put into schemes and improvements.  Heywood in Bloom achieved a Silver-Gilt in the 
Royal Horticultural Society’s North West in Bloom 2015 awards and Heywood gained a total 
of eleven awards and they plan to build on that success for their entry in 2016. 

Page 29



“This group was set up for people who ‘can’t 
cook won’t cook’ and now they are all having a 
go. One client made a cheese and onion pie 
for his Mum and she was so delighted that 
apparently she cried” 
Louise Kershaw 
Centre Manager 

Crimble Croft Community Centre 

Recipient: Crimble Croft Community Centre 

Project: Kitchen Kapers 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £229.93 

Crimble Croft Community Centre provides activities and services to a wide cross section of 
local people.  Working in partnership with the local authority, voluntary and other 
organisations, the centre aims to advance education and to provide facilities in the interests 
of social welfare for recreation and leisure-time with the object of improving the conditions of 
life for the inhabitants of Heywood.  Crimble Croft Community Centre has pre-school, junior 
and senior youth groups, a luncheon club, children’s holiday club, after school club, adult 
education, groups for children with special needs, cookery classes for adults with special 
needs, wellbeing art classes and fitness sessions. 

Kitchen Kapers is a group established to support people with mental health issues or special 
needs with the tasks to prepare a simple, healthy meal in a socially inclusion environment.  
The grant funded kitchen equipment to support the cooking sessions and provided group 
members the opportunities to learn new skills, build confidence and enhance their home 
lives.  Group members enjoy the whole process of preparing, cooking and eating the meals 
they have made together and feel empowered to experiment with recipes and cooking 
techniques. 

“We gather around a large group table 
and discuss the recipe of the week and 
how it ties into the theme. This works 
on recall of how we did things last 
week.  We do a lot of talking and 
sometimes you have to shout over one 
another!” 
Collette, Brian & Steve 

Page 30



“The tutor asks what we need to do 
before we cook and then we all wash our 
hands. This reviews basic hygiene and 
following a sequence.”  Ted 

“We talk about the ingredients we collect 
for the recipe. Last week we did a ‘touchy 
feely’ exercise and tried to describe how it 
feels to touch certain vegetables 
(mushrooms are great for dialogue).  We 
also share hints and tips about how to 
overcome problems such as, how to stop 
your eyes watering when chopping 

onions.”  Collette 

“We follow the recipe from our handbooks. 
There are two things we always try to 
include: some kind of switch activated 
appliance and something we can count 
like stirring or spreading. We have been 
learning how to safely use the blender, 
food processor, grinder, mixer or battery 
operated flour sifter. Throughout the 
activity we use lots of different appliances 
and ask lots of questions -drives Mandy 
bonkers!”  Christine 

“The best part of the course, for me, is 
at the end of the day when we eat 
what we cook and we also get to take 
home the left overs.  I love the look on 
my mum’s face when she sees what 
I’ve made in class!”  Steve 

Page 31

http://teachinglearnerswithmultipleneeds.blogspot.com/2009/10/another-way-to-switch-adapt-cooking.html
http://teachinglearnerswithmultipleneeds.blogspot.com/2009/10/another-way-to-switch-adapt-cooking.html


“The group were very pleased with their 
exhibitions and many took family and friends 
to see their work” 
Kerry Bertram 
Wellbeing Project Coordinator 

Cartwheel Arts 

Recipient: Art & Soul 

Project: Festivals & Colour 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,470 

Art & Soul are a user led art and support group for adults who have experienced mental 
health problems.  Activities are delivered within the local community to breakdown barriers 
between differing experiences of mental health issues.  The group provides a creative 
environment that allows members to express themselves and improve their emotional 
wellbeing through a shared interest in art.  The aims of the group are to reduce social 
isolation, engage people in positive activities, reduce stigma, increase the understanding of 
mental health in the wider public, increase peer support networks, give people ownership of 
their wellbeing and increasing confidence. 

Cartwheel Arts were engaged to project manage Art & Soul activities and they delivered a 
project titled Festivals, and combined this project with a match funded project to cover the 
additional theme of ‘colour’.  The group responded well to the theme of Festivals and Colour. 
The Emotional Support Worker provided books and information sheets and these enabled 
different members to engage with the themes in different ways.  She confirmed working on 
the small coloured squares seemed to generate a lot on interesting work quite quickly.  One 
member started to really explore with block colour and collage.  On the last week of the 
project, one member was encouraged to be creative and supported to make a series of 
greetings cards on the computer.   This member of the group remained engaged for a great 
deal of the session and asked for help; something they struggle with usually. 

The art work produced was exhibited at Darnhill Festival and Heywood Sports Village for a 
period of 3 months.  At Heywood Sports Village the work was shown alongside images from 
Darnhill Festival and showed links between different community activities in the area.  Further 
work was exhibited at Communitea rooms in Rochdale, showcasing the work across the 
borough.  Since these exhibitions, two new members have joined the group after being 
inspired by the art work. 

Overall the group had a good atmosphere and responded well to the theme/s according to 
the Wellbeing Project Coordinator from Cartwheel Arts.  Festivals allowed the group to 
discuss community events that they might not usually attend and the theme was positively 
interpreted by all.  Colour was useful as it engaged people in different ways; from the visual 
response to pure colour, mixing, limiting palettes in new ways and the technical side of colour 
theory. 

Page 32



Page 33



“The parade again this year was 
exceptional, the stage entertainment 
and the number of stalls in the park 
proves that this event is once again 
growing” 
Steve Brown 
Chairman 

Heywood Charities Fete 

Recipient: Heywood Charities Fete Committee 

Project: Heywood Charities Fete 2015 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,815.60 

Heywood Charities Fete aims to develop and improve community involvement by 
encouraging as many local community and voluntary groups as possible to participate in the 
annual event.  Opportunities are created for community organisations to fund raise for the 
benefit of the Heywood community at the Fete with stalls or providing activities. 

The Fete on 6 September 2015 provided a parade and a range of entertainment throughout 
the day that celebrates tradition and community heritage, and promotes community spirit.  
Heywood Charities Fete Committee were awarded a grant to contribute to workshops, stage 
sound system, parade music, the dog agility show and children's entertainment.  Participants 
raised much needed funds for their projects, provided information on the support they offer 
and showed off their skills.  The audience for the event in Queen’s Park and the parade was 
approximately 3,000 people and they were entertained by 32 floats/groups walking who 
participated in the parade themed on fairy tales and nursery rhymes, and 42 park attractions 
including classic cars, circus acts, dance performances, a dog show and bands. 

Heywood’s annual celebration for local worthy causes emulated the success of past events 
with the streets lined with people to enjoy the parade and joining in the fun provided by the 
many attractions in Queen’s Park. 

Page 34



Page 35



 

“So many people from all ages and 

backgrounds came together to enjoy and 

make the event such a happy, pleasurable 

experience” 

Christian Atkinson 
Creative Director 

Music Street 

Recipient: Music Street 

Project: Monkey Business Festival 2015 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £1,887 

Music Street is a non for profit voluntary organisation established to advance the arts, 
heritage and culture in the community.  Education, support and advice is available to provide 
opportunities for local artists and musicians.  In addition to staging a number of indoor 
concerts and open mic jam nights, Music Street have organised three free festivals in the 
borough; the Deeply Dale Festival in Cronkeyshaw and two Monkey Business Festivals in 
Queen’s Park, Heywood that enable local and original artists to be appreciated in their home 
town. 

Music workshops are held weekly at The Recovery Republic Well Being Centre to provide an 
opportunity for people to get involved in group activity with therapeutic benefits.  These 
sessions include learn music theory, song writing techniques and guitar lessons for 
beginners.  Support given to local musicians includes promoting their gigs and music 
releases, producing compilation CDs, organising events and open mic nights and offering 
affordable rehearsal space. 

The Monkey Business Festival was a family friendly free music festival held in Queen’s 
Park, Heywood on 24 May 2015 that helped raise awareness of local services and groups.  
Recovery Republic and Friends of Queens Park benefited from the promotion of the 
facilities, services and resources they offer to local people.  Heywood musicians had the 
opportunity to perform their own music in front of their families, friends and the local 
community and promote the vibrant music scene developing in Heywood and an appreciate 
of the arts in a beautiful park.  The grant awarded contributed towards crowd safety 
barriers, portable toilets, security, PA system, face painting and publicity.  Music Street 
acquired new skills from the event, predominately in planning and organising a festival on 
such a scale. 

This one day festival promoted and celebrated some of the best acts in Heywood and on 
the local scene.  The artists who played the Monkey Business Festival have seen wider 
exposure for their talents amongst people in the community with a programme produced 
detailing the artists and further afield as the event was filmed and uploaded to Youtube.   

Music Street report the feedback and knock on effects of the festival have been very 
positive and they have seen a rapid upsurge of collective ideas that have influenced a great 
many people, organisations and services that will surely benefit the community long into the 
future. 

Page 36



“…so many varied local and original artists coming together and playing a diverse 
range of styles to an appreciative audience.  The most pleasing thing was to witness 
first-hand the evident spirit and camaraderie amongst everyone involved with the 
project” 
Christian Atkinson 
Creative Director 

Music Street 

Page 37



“I like meeting friends at the club.  We  

do a variety of things together.  It is very 

enjoyable” 

Mary Slingo 
Member 

Monday Community Club 

Recipient: Monday Community Club 

Project: Monday Community Club Activities 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £239.98 

Monday Community Club offers the local community an opportunity to socialise and to 
participate in activities such as quizzes, bingo, indoor bowls, guest speakers and trips.  The 
group meets every fortnight on a Monday morning with many of the members from the local 
elderly community. 

The club wished to enhance the activities for its members, especially for those members with 
visual and hearing impairment and attract new members.  The grant enabled the club to 
purchase a supply of bingo tickets, resources for producing quiz materials and meeting 
notices, new mugs plus leaflets to promote the club within the local area.   

All members are provided a timetable of forthcoming activities and tickets are printed to aid 
their memory.  Bingo and the quizzes are popular activities and provide benefits to the club 
members as they can improve the mental agility of older people and helps them sustain 
concentration for longer.  The varied social activities aim to enhance the quality of life of local 
elderly club members. 

Page 38



Recipient: Bamford Road Allotment Society 

Project: Bamford Road Allotment regeneration and disabled access beds 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £5,000 

Bamford Road Allotment Society provides a self-managed allotment site and supports 
members in the pursuit of gardening as a recreation and promotes health, education and 
community fellowship.  The benefits of allotment gardening are fresh air, home grown 
produce that can supplement a family’s weekly shop with fresh fruit and vegetables, 
creating habitats for wildlife, providing a good form of exercise, learning new skills and an 
opportunity to socialise and build a camaraderie with like-minded people. 

The regeneration of the Bamford Road Allotment site involved the provision of raised beds 
with hard standing areas to improve accessible for people with disabilities and children who 
will be encouraged to learn about growing food.  A concrete pathway was created from the 
gate to the raised bed area and trees were removed and thinned at the perimeter/west of 
the site and improvements made to the habitat with the planting of smaller attractive trees 
and wildflowers. 

The improvements to Bamford Road Allotment site have encouraged visits from the 
Cherwell Centre service users and Stroke Club.  The society aims to co-operate with 
groups and organisations with a view to increasing the provision of allotments and 
enhancing standards and facilities. 

“…there is a benefit to all who see the 

site.  We have been able to attract people 

who can now take advantage of our 

facilities” 

Ian Robinson 
Chair person 

Bamford Road Allotment Society 

Page 39



“….a great success with approximately 

300 people attending the event and this 

has led to an even greater awareness of 

the centre and the activities/services 

available” 

Carl Cruise 
Development Manager 

Recovery Republic CIC 

Recipient: Recovery Republic CIC 

Project: Recovery Republic CIC 3rd Year Anniversary Awareness 

Fund: Events Fund & Projects Fund 

Awarded: £1,200 

Recovery Republic is a community wellbeing centre located in Heywood that provides an 
extensive range of peer supported activities; educational, social, therapeutic and 
developmental which promote health and wellbeing for people, primarily Heywood 
residents, in recovery (ie post treatment) at a specialist designed/purpose built centre. 

The anniversary awareness event was staged on Saturday 25 July 2015 at Recovery 
Republic's community wellbeing centre.  The event aimed to raise awareness of the range 
of services and activities available to the local community from Recovery Republic and Little 
Monkey's Children's Charity with an emphasis on mental health and recovery support from 
Pathways alcohol and drugs service 'Big Life', Rochdale and District Mind and Lets Talk 
Partnership.  Health trainers, local dentists, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, PCSOs and 
other agencies were available to offer advice.  Children were engaged through activities 
such as face painting, a bouncy castle, juggling, a special appearance by Queen Elsa from 
Disney’s Frozen, arts and crafts and other activities with a focus on informal and 
educational sessions.  Music provided at the event provided an opportunity for local bands 
and singers to showcase local talent from Heywood.  The event achieved a general 
atmosphere and feeling of goodwill throughout the day. 

Recovery Republic has experienced a noticeable increase (over 200%) in the number of 
referrals to their wellbeing assessment and activities, Let’s Talk assessments, benefits and 
debt advice and guidance services as a result of increased awareness. 

Page 40



“It was really amazing and it helped me 
think about my career..about what I 
want to become” 
Year 9 Student 

Borough Skills Event 2015 

Recipient: Rochdale Council/Inspired Spaces/Rochdale Development Agency 

Project: Borough Skills Event 2015 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £500 

The Borough Skills Event 2015 brought together Year 9 students, business leaders and 
careers advisers on 11 March 2015 at Heywood Distribution Park where young people were 
given the opportunity to experience everything from a crime scene to a vehicle repair 
garage and a catering kitchen.  The event provided all students with an opportunity to 
explore job and training options within the local area as well as raise aspirations and 
awareness of the specialist industries across the Borough.  Township funds contributed 
towards the publicity of the event attended that was promoted extensive through social 
media, the press and direct contact with the schools. 

The main aim of the skills event was to help equip young people with knowledge of the 
opportunities available to them in the local area and give them a flavour of how these 
industries and careers work to help shape their futures, it can be said from evaluations 
received from participants this was achieved successfully. 

Sample of Evaluations Results 

 100% of staff felt the event was ‘Excellent’ or ‘Good’

 91% of staff felt their students came away from the event with more knowledge of the
local job opportunities available to them.

 64% of staff felt all local sectors of work were in attendance, whilst staff suggested areas
in which young people may be interested in moving forward

 79% of young people felt the activities offered on the day by the exhibitors were
‘Excellent’ or ‘Good’

 77% of young people believe they are now more aware of the job opportunities available
to them locally

 A majority of young people felt the event was fantastic and have suggested further
improvements they feel will make the Rochdale Skills Event even better moving forward

Page 41



Comments about the event 

“I think that the event has helped me decide what job role I 
want to do in the future because I was able to try out a few 
different types of activities and whichever one I enjoyed the 
most I will take into consideration in doing that activity as a 
job” 

“I was introduced to many other job opportunities which I 
haven’t considered before” 

“I didn’t have a good idea of the careers I can go into the 
skills, so the event helped me understand about different 
careers” 

“It was quite eye opening but I don’t feel that I had enough 
time to search for all the different jobs, it would be better if it 
lasted longer”  

“More information on salary, typical; working days and so 
on” 

“It was the best trip I have been on to teach me about jobs 
and apprenticeships I could apply for when I finish school” 

Page 42



“We believe the website will be of real 

benefit for local people, visitors and 

businesses in the town and will serve to 

strengthen the community as a whole” 

Sandra Trickett 

The Aspen Tree 

Recipient: Sandra Trickett 

Project: Official Heywood Town Website 

Fund: Town Centre Fund 

Awarded: £3,890 

A new official website for Heywood that provides a straightforward and convenient place to 
go for all local information is planned to go live in May 2016.  The venture is funded for the 
initial three years by Heywood Township.  Designed and managed by the newly established 
Heywood-based business The Aspen Tree, the website aims to provide information useful 
to visitors to the town and to residents living in the town and offer a platform to promote the 
high number of voluntary groups and charities, to co-ordinate and publicise events, 
showcase amenities on offer within the town and promote local businesses. 

The on-going maintenance and future development of the website will include enrolling 
local advertisers.  A percentage of the advertising revenue is planned to be made available 
to local charities.  Heywood town will be promoted as a place of interest to visit, a thriving 
shopping destination and an attractive location to set up a business. 

Page 43

http://theaspentree.co.uk/


APPENDIX 5

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2016/17

REVENUE FUNDS 2016/17 = £75,491

REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2015/16 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2016/17
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2016/17

Notes

Projects Fund £7,987 £42,000 £0 £49,987 £7,880 £42,107 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township 

priorities.  Base budget of £42,000 with retained budget of £7,880 

(see committed column) for projects approved pre 2016/17.

Events Fund £325 £8,000 £0 £8,325 £325 £8,000 Fund for Heywood Township to allocate to events during 2015/16 

for the benefit of the local community.  Base budget of £8,000 

with retained budget of £325 (see committed column) for projects 

approved pre 2016/17.

North Ward Fund £3,749 £3,000 £0 £6,749 £2,552 £4,197 Fund for North Heywood Ward to allocate to small revenue 

projects to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 

local community/environment.  Base budget of £3,000 with 

retained budget of £2,552 (see committed column) for projects 

approved pre 2016/17.

West Ward Fund £0 £3,000 £0 £3,000 £0 £3,000 Fund for West Heywood Ward to allocate to small revenue 

projects to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 

local community/environment.  Base budget of £3,000.

Hopwood Hall Ward Fund £5,430 £2,000 £0 £7,430 £2,000 £5,430 Fund for Hopwood Hall Heywood Ward to allocate to small 

revenue projects to respond to local issues/demands for the 

benefit of the local community/environment.  Base budget of 

£2,000 with retained budget of £2,000 (see committed column) 

for projects approved pre 2016/17.

TOTAL £17,491 £58,000 £0 £75,491

Page 1 of 2

P
age 44



CAPITAL FUNDS 2016/17 = £65,398

CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2015/16 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2016/17
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2016/17

Notes

Capital Fund £11,798 £53,600 £0 £65,398 £1,790 £63,608 Fund to resource capital projects that meet the Township 

priorities.  Base budget of £53,600 with retained budget of £1,790 

(see committed column) for projects approved pre 2016/17.

TOTAL £11,798 £53,600 £0 £65,398

Page 2 of 2

P
age 45



 

Form HT03 

1 

 HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUND TERMS AND CONDITIONS 2016-17 APPENDIX 6 
 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Heywood Township’s vision is for Heywood to offer an attractive location, which is part of a successful 
borough and city region, where people feel proud of the town and enjoy living there.  We want Heywood to 
have a strong sense of identity and community offering a wide range of housing in attractive neighbourhoods 
at excellent value, modern employment opportunities and a thriving town centre with a good range of shops 
and leisure facilities. 
 

Heywood Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct benefit 
to the community and environment of Heywood.  Any local constituted community organisation can request 
funding support from Heywood Township for project support.  Special consideration will be given to groups 
without their own funds/with limited alternative means and those in areas not benefiting from other funding 
opportunities. 
 

All projects must show how they will address the Heywood Township priorities of: 
 

 Place – To promote environmental, economic and social regeneration to benefit the local community. 

 People – Improved service provision to young people so they will have happier, healthier and more 

prosperous lives.  To improve the health of residents and deliver a better quality of life.  To reduce crime 

and the fear of crime so that people who live and work in Heywood will feel and be safer. 

 Prosperity - Develop quality business and employment opportunities. 

 

2. What can be funded 

 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 

b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 

c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 

e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 

f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, fencing, 

lights, CCTV, etc. 

g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 

h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 

i) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by the Township. 

j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 

k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 

l) Talented young athletes competing at national/international level supported by a recognised sporting 

body. 

 

3. What cannot be funded 

 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing 

services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 

c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 

community benefit. 

d) Promoting religious or political causes. 

e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 

f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. 

 Page 46



 

Form HT03 

2 

g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 

h) General running costs eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 

i) Parties/day trips out. 

j) Purchase of alcohol. 

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded. 

l) Purchasing of vehicles. 

m) Purchasing insurance. 

 

4. Terms and conditions 

 

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council. 

b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the Heywood 

Township priorities. 

c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 

account. 

d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Heywood Township Delegated Sub 

Committee’s discretion. 

e) Applicants are limited to one Heywood Township grant in any two consecutive financial years. 

f) Grants are restricted to one application per one event/project. Applications from different user groups of 

the same project or centre for the same event at the same time are not eligible. 

g) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 

must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Heywood Township Delegated Sub 

Committee’s discretion. 

h) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 

claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs. 

i) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 

regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

j) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 

Council owned land. 

k) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have policies 

and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe. 

l) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 

ensure adequate insurance is in place. 

m) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 

by Township Funds. 

n) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are not 

adhered to. 

o) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant. 

p) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy 

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 

detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Heywood Township Office within 

one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 

being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

q) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded.   

Page 47



 

Form HT03 

3 

5. Decision Making Process 

 

a. All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation. 

b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and conditions 

of the fund. 

c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to 

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be 

requested to supply additional information. 

d) Township Officers will refer projects for funding over £5,000 to the next Heywood Township Delegated 

Sub Committee for decision. 

e) Township Officers will use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 or 

less. 

f) Decisions on Ward Funds are delegated to the Principal Townships Officer in consultation with the Ward 

Councillors with the decision based on majority agreement.  Any disputes concerning allocation of Ward 

Funds will be referred to the next Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee for decision. 

g) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Heywood Township 

Delegated Sub Committee meeting. 

h) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 

not be re-elected. 

i) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

 

6. Commissioning Process 
 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the specification 

and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 

alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 

provider and the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee prior to incurring any additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 

with the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 

variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 

the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide not to accept the 

variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the Committee accepts 

the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 

of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 

payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Heywood 

Township Delegated Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service provider, withhold funds (or 

withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service provider 

unless agreed otherwise with the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices. 

Page 48



 

Subject: Summit Estate area, Heywood, 
Objections received to proposed 20mph speed 
limit

Status: For Publication

Report to: Heywood Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Environment

Date: Monday, 23 May 2016
 

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods

Author Email:    anne.winn@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Anne Winn

Tel: Tel: 01706 924612

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes

Key Decision: 

1 Purpose of the report
1.1 This report is to advise Members of objections and comments received in response 
to the published proposals to introduce a 20mph speed limit in the Summit Estate area 
of Heywood and to present the response of the Director of Neighbourhoods.

2 Recommendations
2.1 It is recommended that members read the report and make a decision to 
implement the Borough of Rochdale (Summit Street & Various Surrounding Roads 
(Summit Estate Area), Heywood) (20mph Speed Limit) and Revocation Order.

2.2 Members could decide not to implement this proposal and/or provide an alternative 
option.

2.3 Members could decide to introduce additional traffic calming features as requested 
by some local residents but additional funds would be required to do this work and any 
traffic calming features would need to be publicised  and consulted on in accordance 
with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, Regulations 1996 and the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984.

2.4 The proposed Order relates to a highway that is non-strategic and will be 
processed in accordance with F2 of the Scheme of Delegation to Township 
Committee.

3 Background
3.1 Complaints have been received from local residents with regards to the speed of 
vehicles in the area.  To determine the extent of the problem Heywood Township 
provided funds to carry out speed surveys at two locations in the area – one survey 
was located on Higher Lomax Lane and the other survey was located on Duke Street.

3.2 Results of the surveys indicated that the average speeds on Higher Lomax Lane 
were 25.1mph in a northerly direction and 23.9mph in a southerly direction and the 
average speeds on Duke Street were 15.2mph in a northerly direction and 16.8mph in 

Page 49

Agenda Item 13



a southerly direction.

3.3 Interrogation of the accident data shows that there have been only two recorded 
personal injury accidents in the last 3 years – one a rear end shunt at the junction of 
Bank Top Street and Cherwell Avenue the other at Lune Grove where an emergency 
vehicle responding to an incident, lost control and collided with a pedestrian.

3.4 A full report outlining the results of the surveys was circulated through the 
Township Office to all local Ward Councillors. 

3.5 The report outlined an option available, which due to the relatively low average 
speeds would best suit, along with the advantages and disadvantages and a cost 
estimate. This option was to Introduce an area wide 20mph speed limit.

3.6 Ward Councillors requested that an application be submitted for funding and this 
received approval in December 2015.

3.7 In accordance with statutory procedures, notice of the proposals was advertised in 
the Heywood Advertiser on 28th January 2016.  Notices were also served on statutory 
consultees and were posted on site on the 28th January 2016 on roads affected by the 
proposals and copies of the relevant documents made available for inspection at  the 
Council Offices in Heywood.

3.8 In addition to 3.7, a consultation leaflet was hand delivered to all properties within 
the proposed 20mph area (approximately 1300), outlining the proposals and giving 
contact details for residents to make  objections or raise comments.

3.9 A total of 28 responses were received to the formal consultation, 25 by email, 2 by 
phone call and 1 letter.  These included 24 in favour of the proposals advertised and 4 
against. Those against the proposed scheme felt that it was only a minority who were 
driving too fast.  Of those in favour 6 wanted to know how it would be enforced and 4 
wanted extra speed humps installing.

3.10 Please see appendix 1 for a breakdown of all the comments received and the 
related responses from the Director of Neighbourhoods.

3.11 Please see appendix 2 for a plan showing details of scheme and extent of 
20mph area.

Alternatives considered

4 Financial Implications
4.1 Heywood Township have allocated £18,235.00 for the introduction of the scheme 
which includes legal costs associated with the introduction of a Traffic Regulation 
Order and implementation costs for signs and road markings.

5  Legal Implications
5.1 If it is deemed that substantial amendments are made to the current proposal then 
the  Council will have to take the necessary steps to inform persons likely to be 
affected by the modifications, give those persons an opportunity to make 
representations and ensure that any such representations are duly considered.

5.2 The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely for the 
safe passage of all traffic including pedestrians.

6 Personnel Implications

Page 50



6.1 None

7 Corporate Priorities
7.1 The Heywood Township Plan has set targets for the township in the coming year.

7.2 Heywood Township promotes safety and community engagement through various 
groups, this helps to deliver schemes that meet local needs.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 
8.1 None

9. Equalities Impacts
9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments
There are no (significant) equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 51



APPENDIX 1  

Summit Area 

Responses to Public consultation  

 

Objectors 
 

Objections to the proposals (comments written as received) 

Objector A 

 

Having received your leaflet re the proposed speed limit on Higher Lomax and 

surrounding area, all I can see is another waste of my money. I am aware that 

some residents have complained about drivers speeding but I have not witnessed 

this and as I live just off Bury New Road I would have witnessed it. If the residents 

don't live on Higher Lomax and Cherwell, where I may add has speed bumps, then 

what is their issue as they are deciding what should be done to my road.   They 

must live in the cul-de-sacs off these roads and won't address the issue with the 

speeders who they must know. Then instead of using yourselves to have a go at 

everyone I suggest they get together as a residents group and have the decency to 

canvass the area and find out what all the residents want, this would then make it 

a consultation with a fair decision.  The issue is not the speeders but the amount of 

traffic that comes past my house, i.e. Morrison's lorries, drivers using it as a short 

cut to Bamford/Norden especially when the motorway is shut like it was a couple 

of weeks ago. I have also seen this system not work outside schools so why do you 

think putting up a few signs is going to make a difference.  I presumed rightly or 

wrongly that we live in a democratic country not a dictatorship and a few people 

who complain can get what they want.  I suggest that if they want a 20mph sign 

outside their home that they purchase it out of their own pocket and install it 

themselves, as that is just how much use it will be and not use other people's 

money, for their neighbourhood issues, when there are more important things 

that the money could be used for.  I am aware that if the signs don't work then 

other options will be considered, again it will be the same people complaining.  I 

then suggest they move into the country where they will not have the problem and 

let the rest of us live in peace.  

I don't want a sign outside my house and will remove so if you do use this system 

then I would appreciate a consultation before it is placed and those that have 

complained can have the sign with pleasure. 

 

Thank you reading this however I know that it will be ignored and the minority will 

get what they want.  If this scheme goes ahead then it would be polite for those 

that have complained to stand up and be counted instead of hiding and speak to 

the other residents individually and stop being pathetic little moaners with 

obviously nothing else to do 

 

Ps I don't mind the complainers being informed of the contents of my email so 

long as my email address to kept confidential. 

 

Response 

Funding for the proposed scheme was approved by Heywood Township Committee in December 2015, this 

was after speed surveys were approved at the same committee in June 2015, both of which are public 

meetings were members of the public can voice their opinions.     

Speed surveys undertaken on Higher Lomax Lane in September 2015 highlighted the problem of vehicles 

travelling at inappropriate speeds within the residential area. Research has that the use of signs alone will 

reduce vehicle speeds by 1 or 2 mph, bringing the average speeds close to the new lower speed limit. 

 

Page 52



 

 

Objector B 

 

 

Not in support of the proposals as there is not a speeding issue apart from the 

minority of people who will ignore the 20mph signs as they ignore the existing 

speed humps on Cherwell Ave.  In addition, there are no accident problems in the 

area. 

Response  

Speed surveys undertaken on Higher Lomax Lane in September 2015 highlighted the problem of vehicles 

travelling at inappropriate speeds within the residential area. The average speed being 24.5 mph, with 3 

vehicles travelling in excess of 45mph and 2.8% travelling at over 33mph. Research has that the use of 

signs alone will reduce vehicle speeds by 1 or 2 mph, bringing the average speeds close to the new lower 

speed limit. 

 

Objector C 

 

We live on Conway Close where proposed signs are due to be erected a short way 

into the Close. 

I cannot see the necessity of these as by the time you will have reached the 

proposed signs you are half way along the Close and it is very rare you can get into 

a high gear to reach 20 miles per hour. 

There are one or two culprits who do drive fast and these signs will do nothing to 

stop them. 

I feel it is a waste of time and money which could be put to a better cause. 

Response   

It is proposed to introduce repeater signs throughout the area as well as gateway signs at the entry points. 

These will serve as a constant reminder to drivers of the reduced speed limit which is more appropriate for 

the residential area. 

Objector D 

 

I am writing to you with regards to a recent leaflet that is being delivered to 

residents within the summit estate.  

I understand fully the ramifications of speed limits having worked in the industry 

for over 20 years enforcing and dealing with many aspects of accident prevention. 

Unfortunately I found that often these speed limits are often not adhered to, these 

zones are most effective outside schools and local parks and used methodically 

with careful consideration of implementation. This has had a significant effect 

upon reducing speed limits.  Unfortunately recent data tells us that  zones of this 

nature are being increasingly used liberally and are quickly  becoming less effective 

in dealing with the main issues of excessive speed in built up areas, plainly put, 

they are simply a way of keeping specific residents happy whilst not dealing with 

key issues. i.e main offenders, I am not opposed to “remember your speed” signs 

situated  upon main roads of the summit estate but strongly advise not wasting tax 

payers money upon areas that simply do not require it, again it is another control 

of limits that are simply unworkable and quite often impractical. I would also like 

to propose that speed limit could be reduced via specific narrowing of lanes and 

simple and careful landscaping which has been applied upon various estates 

around the country with significant success rates and data that is available online 

all of which are in keeping with the local environment and conurbation 

committees. 

Drivers must adhere to common sense driving and if they fail to does this be 

punished according through local force involvement. Having been a similar 

meeting recently with regards to community issues it was clear that residents 

overwhelmingly want to see local police or community officers walking the estate 

Page 53



and creating an increased confidence within the area, having been involved with a 

number of thefts from properties and vehicles upon the summit estate, council 

representative need to consider mindfully what all residents are requesting rather 

than dealing with a minority and taking a quick fix to issues raised. As local 

community campaigner and committee chairman, I would do not recommend 

spending money upon "ugly" signage scattered around the estate that would have 

little or no effect upon daily speed limits. 

Response   Key to the success of any 20mph speed limit is community involvement and support of all 

drivers by respecting the new reduced limit. By introducing 20mph repeater signs within the area these 

will serve as a reminder to drivers of the new speed limit. 

 

Supporter/  

Comments 
Comments in support of the proposals 

Supporter / 

Comment  A 

 

Requested addition 20mph signs to be placed on Cherwell Ave 

Response 

Additional 20mph repeater signs will be provided on Cherwell Avenue as requested. 

Supporter / 

Comment  B 

 

Having today received the leaflet outlining the above,  I write to record my 

support for the proposed measures.   

Although I realise it would not happen, I would also request that, if the proposals 

are adopted, consideration be given to the subsequent removal of the humps on 

Cherwell Avenue. Even at below 20 mph, I consider these humps are more of a 

nuisance to careful drivers than a deterrent to those who are likely to speed in the 

area. 

 

Response   

A source of funding would need to be identified before the existing speed humps on Cherwell Avenue 

could be removed, in addition, their removal would result in an increase in vehicle speeds within the area.  

 

Supporter / 

Comment  C 

 

I wish to add my support for the proposed 20mph speed limit in the Summit estate 

area. Having lived on Higher Lomax Lane for over 35 years I have witnessed the 

increase in cars on the estate including those parking on both sides of the road 

which in its -self constitutes a hazard. My house is located on the bend adjacent to 

the Medway, how there has not been a serious accident due to the nature of the 

bend and more importantly the speed of some motorist is a minor miracle. This 

speed limit scheme is long overdue and I hope the Council will be able to 

implement it as soon as possible. 

 

Response 

Implementation of the proposals will be subject to approval by Heywood Township. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  D 

 

Hi and thanks for the leaflet about the 20mph zone. As a resident of Higher Lomax 

Lane, it's a great idea. However, I do doubt whether it'll work without any other 

enforcement, i.e. speed bumps or other speed management methods. Just putting 

signs up (even right outside our house) on this section of road won't do a lot to 

slow people down. 

 

Response 

Speed surveys undertaken in September 2015 indicated that the average speed on Higher Lomax Lane was 

24.5mph. Research has shown that using signs alone will reduce vehicle speeds by 1 to 2mph. If complaints 

Page 54



continue to be received a review of the scheme will be undertaken with a view to funding being sought for 

the introduction of traffic calming measures. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  E 

 

 

Hello i am a resident on Avon road on the summit estate and on numerous 

occasions have experienced driver’s deliberately driving unsafe on these street i 

think that it would be a fantastic idea to have this 20mph limit enforced. However 

what can we do as a community if we witness these inconsiderate drivers ignoring 

the new enforced speed limit? 

I would also like to add to the suggestion box. Speed bumps in the area would 

tackle a lot of speeding motorists on the estate in question 

Response   

The enforcement of any speed limit is the responsibility of the Police, as such, if any abuse of the reduced 

speed limit is observed this should be reported to them.  Greater Manchester Police have been consulted 

on the proposals and have given their support to the scheme. If complaints continue to be received a 

review of the scheme will be undertaken with a view to funding being sought for the introduction of traffic 

calming measures. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment   F 

 

Today 26.1.2016 I received your "flyer" regarding proposed 20 MPH speed limit in 

the Summit Estate area. I am in full agreement that this estate needs to slow down 

certain idiots who drive far too fast for an estate road where children can be 

outside playing and where the number of parked cars has increased significantly in 

recent years. But I find your idea of erecting signs of 20 MPH speed limit would be 

a complete waste of time and money because very few people would adhere to 

them. What is needed is a physical way of slowing down speeding drivers    SPEED 

HUMPS.      

Response 

Research has shown that using signs alone will reduce vehicle speeds by 1 to 2mph. If complaints continue 

to be received a review of the scheme will be undertaken with a view to funding being sought for the 

introduction of traffic calming measures. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  G 

 

Have received  your leaflet  on proposed 20mph speed  limit  on the 

summit  Heywood my question  is if it  goes ahead how will it be enforced  

 

Response 

The enforcement of any speed limit is the responsibility of the Police who have been consulted on the 

proposals and have given their support to the scheme.  

 

Supporter / 

Comment  H 

 

I have important comments to make regarding the proposed 20 mph speed 

limit on the Summit Estate. 

Some years ago when the council were planning to install road humps here, 

I suggested that   a 20 mph speed limit, as on the neighbouring council estate, 

would be a better traffic control option. However a senior police office present at 

the public meeting stated that such a speed limit is not enforceable and so 

the road humps were eventually installed instead. 

Your leaflet states that you have received complaints about the speed of vehicles 

in the area. 

I wish to point out that a much greater danger exists here and that is the illegal 

practice of some car owners parking on the pavements. This allows moving traffic 

to use a greater width of road, whereas properly parked cars would reduce 

the useable road width, and so   slow down traffic automatically. 

Parked vehicles obstruct the   view of pedestrians, particularly children as they 

Page 55



walk or play with scooters on the pavement. Drivers who wish to turn into their 

own house drives also have their view of such pedestrians dangerously obstructed. 

My own experience, when turning  off the road into my drive, involved  my having 

to make an emergency  stop as a child, walking past a parked  car, reached 

my  drive at the same  time. Neither of us had been visible to the other. 

A blind gentleman regularly  walks with his  dog along Cherwell  Avenue, and he 

experiences extra difficulties  through having  to negotiate past parked vehicles, 

especially  on the  days  of  bin collections, when even more of the  pavement 

width is unavailable to pedestrians. 

Congestion here is worse than ever since so many people now shop online, 

thus entailing more vehicles making deliveries to houses here. 

Crossing the road on foot is now especially hazardous because of the pavement 

parking which restricts the view of the road. 

I suggest that this illegal practice should be stopped, rather than imposing a speed 

limit which cannot be enforced.  

The installation of cctv cameras would be a much better 

option  and  would  regulate both  speeding and  selfish parking by motorists. 

Please ensure that my concerns will be fully considered and reported equally fully, 

not simply outlined, in reports to ward councillors and appropriate highways 

officers. 

Response 

Over recent years there has been a change in the approach to speed limits in residential areas, with more 

authorities introducing blanket 20mph speed limits; this is seen as being more appropriate for residential 

streets.  

Driving on the footway and causing an obstruction is an offence and can only be enforced by the Police. As 

such, any problems should be reported to them.  

  

Supporter / 

Comment  I 

 

In response to your recent consultation re the above I wish to advise that I fully 

support this proposal in the interests of enhancing safety for residents and all road 

users. 

 

My only concern is on the matter of enforcement. Are there any proposals to 

introduce cameras or other mechanisms to record the details of those who exceed 

the new limit? Without such measures I fear that those who already drive too fast 

will continue to do so despite the reduced legal limit. 

 

Response 

If complaints continue to be received a review of the scheme will be undertaken with a view to funding 

being sought for the introduction of traffic calming measures where appropriate. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  J 

 

I received your flyer the other day about the 20mph Proposed limit on the Summit 

Estate. Whilst personally I have no objection to it but there are a couple of things 

that I want to comment about the proposal. Why would anyone want to travel at 

speed in a vehicle down Cherwell Ave and Lomax Lane with all the speed bumps is 

hard to believe, considering that even going over the bumps at 10mph leads to 

strain on the car. Another thing that I want to bring to your attention is a matter of 

double yellow lines. I brought this concern up with councillor Beswick a couple of 

months ago. When the lines were repainted on Bury New Rd, a while ago for some 

strange reason the lines were not repainted into Higher Lomax Lane. We now have 

even a worse situation with car’s parking right to the junction of Lomax Lane and 

Bury New Rd. This is an accident waiting to happen as I have been nearly hit twice 

with cars parked on the corner obstructing the view whilst you try and join the 

Page 56



main road. When will these lines be repainted, and more importantly will the 

parking rules be implemented or just left as it is now. We also have a similar 

situation with cars parking right to the junction of Highfield Ave and Higher Lomax 

lane. Whilst the bollards that were put up months ago have helped, there are 

people who continually park right up to the junction and this makes it a nightmare 

at times joining Lomax Lane. I hope you don’t mind me bringing these concerns to 

you attention, but I am very concerned about the lines situation. 

 

Response 

The proposals are to introduce an area wide 20mph speed limit not just on those streets with existing 

traffic calming. The issue with regard to faded yellow lines will be reported to the relevant section for 

them to programme in the works for the lines to be refreshed. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  K 

 

Having just received you leaflet through my door I have a couple of question and 

points to make  

1) On looking at it am I right in thinking that you wish to put repeater signs half 

way down Conway Close ( I live at 22 ) what is the purpose of this, as a dead end  

95 % of our traffic is householders who drive very responsibly, As it's a very short 

road if you do put repeater 20mph signs who is going to police it and is there going 

to be the regulation distance to safely check a speeding motorist ????   In the 33 

years here I've never seen a speeding motorist on the Close or heard of a traffic 

accident on Conway Close.   

2) Is this proposal evidence based?? 

3) We already have speed bumps throughout the summit estate  ( which appear to 

need checking as they appear to be at different heights and gradients) if these 

have not slowed traffic down what makes you think that 20mph sign will ??? 

Again who is going to police this having lived here for 33 years I've yet to see a 

traffic police officer and with a dwindling police budget I doubt we will, so once 

again who is going to police it all ??? 

Could we on Conway Close not have a No Entry sign if we are to have any signs at 

all. 

While I do not dispute the need for traffic safety measure generally I do think that 

better use of Rochdale's highway budget could be looked at.  

 

Response 

The purpose of 20mph repeater signs is to remind all drivers of the reduced speed limit, it is a legal 

requirement that repeater signs are used where speed limits differ from 30mph. 

The scheme is a direct result of requests from local residents and ward councillors. 

The enforcement of any speed limit is the responsibility of the Police who have been consulted on the 

proposals and have given their support to the scheme.  

 

Supporter / 

Comment  L 

 

I am in favour of the proposed 20 mph speed limit. 

However I am against any speed humps being put in conjunction with such a 

scheme. 

The current speed humps have caused damage to my vehicle even though I drive 

below 20 mph on the estate. The speed humps on Peel Street are possibly higher 

than the regulation size. The speed hump by 46, Cherwell Ave is dangerous as the 

road has sunk in front of the same causing vehicles to swerve on to the opposite 

side of the road! Please NO MORE SPEED HUMPS. This will avoid damage to 

vehicles and reduce the possibility of legal liability for Rochdale MBC. 

Response 

The proposed scheme is for a 20mph speed limit only. 

Page 57



Supporter / 

Comment  M 

 

I am writing regarding the proposed 20mph speed limit in Summit and would like 

to say I'm all for it.  The area is prone to people going over 30mph too so I would 

be glad to see it.  Also I'm sure the residents of Summit will be pleased that their 

council is actually thinking of them for once as we are overlooked on so many 

levels. 

  

I would, however, like to add a few comments though please.   

Looking at the map and the proposed repeater signs, I am a little confused as to 

why there are so many proposed in the smaller roads and why there are none 

proposed for Cherwell Avenue itself.  Cherwell Avenue is the main road through 

the estate and people fly up and down there so this is where they are needed as 

well as the other roads.  I would like to see the repeater signs at the end of my 

road and at the bottom of Derby Street; actually on Cherwell Avenue itself, just 

before and after the Cherwell Centre.  This would be sensible and would make 

more sense. 

I also think a repeater would be suitable for Bank Top Street, outside Cherwell 

Court home as this is where many people cross the road. 

  

Please could you keep all residents updated by e-mail and posted flyers so your 

residents and council tax payers are fully informed of your decisions. 

Response 

In response to this public consultation, it is proposed to introduce additional 20mph repeater signs on 

Cherwell Avenue. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  N 

 

I’d like to express my support for the proposal of a 20mph speed limit around the 

Summit Estate. I think it will make the area safer. I hope it is successful. 

 

Response 

Implementation of the proposals will be subject to approval by Heywood Township. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  O 

 

Regarding the proposed 20mph speed limit for the Summit Estate, although I am 

not against it I have the following concerns which I feel are more of a threat to 

health and safety: 

• How will the speed limit be enforced, how often and by whom? 

• Will there be sufficient money in the scheme for maintenance of the road 

and street signing? 

On the 25
th

 January 2016 I witnessed a parcel delivery driver in a new hire van 

travelling in both directions along Cherwell Avenue (this road has speed 

bumps/ramps) on the Summit Estate; I estimated it was travelling a minimum 

of 40mph.  At this speed I consider there is a greater risk of the vehicle going 

out of control when going over speed bumps/ramps.   I know of two incidents 

on Walton Street, Heywood (a 20mph zone), that highlight this: 

• A car travelling at speed hit a speed bump and the driver lost control. The 

car mounted the pavement and demolished a garden wall. 

• On another occasion a stolen car hit the same speed bump at speed 

causing the front wheel to come off, this wheel bounced onto the 

pavement, over the top of a garage and finally came to rest in a back 

garden after hitting the house wall. 

Fortunately no one was injured in either of the incidents. 

I have also noticed potholes around speed bumps/ramps in the town.  These 

potholes seem to remain for long periods of time before they are repaired.  If the 

proposed 20mph speed bumps/ramps are installed on the Summit Estate will 

Page 58



these potholes and any other potholes for that matter, be repaired quickly?  I’m 

sure there is a greater chance of accidents being caused by drivers of vehicles 

swerving to avoid these potholes. 

 

Response 

The enforcement of any speed limit is the responsibility of the Police who have been consulted on the 

proposals and have given their support to the scheme.  

Maintenance of the carriageway signs road markings will come under the general highways maintenance 

budget. 

It is the responsibility of the vehicle drivers to drive in accordance with the road conditions. 

The maintenance of the carriageway will be the responsibility of the Highways Maintenance section and 

will come under their normal maintenance regime. 

Supporter / 

Comment  P 

 

I wholeheartedly support the expansion of the 20mph speed limit around the 

residential areas.  

 

I am wondering if there are any proposals to add more speed bumps on through 

roads? As a resident on Millbank Street I am often concern at the speeds road 

users use on my street and believe speed bumps are a stronger incentive to slow 

down. In particular, Wham St, Albert St, Duke St, Derby St and Millbank St are 

often used to avoid queuing traffic and being caught at the traffic lights at the 

junction of Bury Street and Pilsworth Road. These streets are heavy with parked 

cars, often double parked, and I feel they would particularly benefit from measures 

additional to the repeater signs.  

 

Response 

At present there are no proposals to introduce any additional speed humps within the area.   

  

Supporter / 

Comment  Q 

 

I would welcome this scheme, especially on Severn Road motorist use this road as 

a shortcut into Heywood, they don't slow down, I live on the corner of Severn Road 

over the years there has been several incidents, what makes the problem worse 

residents double park and also on corners , when motorists park on the corner of 

Severn Road  you have to come round off  Higher Lomax Lane in the middle of the 

road. 

I will be interested to see if this plan goes ahead, the residents on Summit Estate 

pay a lot of council tax but don't get anything done; I look forward to hearing from 

you regarding this problem. 

 

Response 

Implementation of the proposals will be subject to approval by Heywood Township. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  R 

 

It seems the majority are being penalised by the few.  

I have lived on the estate since 1971, and my experience is that speeding on the 

estate is restricted to only a few drivers. These drivers will not be influenced by 

20mph signs being erected. If you are not able to police the current 

30mph maximum speed limit, what do you intend doing to enforce the lower 

limit? The people flouting the law do not respond to roadside signs. The 

introduction of speed reducing bumps as had little or no effect on the speeds 

these people adopt between the humps, and even over the humps. They have 

disregard for other people and even the effect their driving has on their precious 

vehicles. 

The police do not have the resources to deal with these people. Speed checks are 

so arbitrary and catch anyone/all who might stray the odd mph over the limit. 

Page 59



Cameras cannot discriminate between persistent high speed offenders 

outside their zone. 

It seems you have already decided to waste all this extra money you have procured 

on this futile proposal. Are you intending to introduce a cooling off/familiarisation 

period to enable drivers to get used to the alteration you are imposing? This will 

not alter the behaviour of the speeding minority, but allow the majority to adjust 

to the changes. 

These are constructive comments, sent in good faith, not complaints. I applaud 

your efforts trying to improve the safety of residents on the estate. Thank you. 

 

Response 

The enforcement of any speed limit is the responsibility of the Police who have been consulted on the 

proposals and have given their support to the scheme.  

If complaints continue to be received a review of the scheme will be undertaken with a view to funding 

being sought for the introduction of traffic calming measures where appropriate. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  S 

 

I believe the way some vehicles are parked pose a danger not only to people but to 

other drivers. I live on the corner of Higher Lomax Lane and Lune Grove and a large 

white van is regularly parked dangerously close the junction restricting both entry 

and exit from Lune Grove. Higher Lomax Lane has very high speed traffic on it 

approaching Cherwell Avenue. I would agree with having speed restrictions if 

enforced, the lack of visibility at this junction caused by said parked vehicle is a 

major concern for safety. The parking of large vehicles on this estate is a greater 

danger than just the speed of traffic. I would welcome this to be considered as an 

equally great hazard to safety.  

 

Response 

The introduction of waiting restrictions which would prevent indiscriminate parking would have to be 

subject to a Traffic Regulation Order and be separately consulted on.  Extra funding would have to be 

sought. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  T 

 

In response to the recent leaflet circulate to the residents of the Summit Estate I 

would like to make the following comments: 1.) Speed bumps have been on 
Cherwell Avenue for some time and make very little difference to the speed the 

majority of traffic observe. I live in a house at the corner of Conway Close & 

Cherwell Avenue so we have the wide traffic bump that in my opinion is too high 

and wide. If they were to be more narrower and more frequent instead of one flat 

surface people might adhere to the reduced speed required. 

The noise vehicles come up or down the hill over the humps is horrendous, there 

have been times when I thought there had been a crash and especially if a vehicle 

with a trailer in tow is even worse.  

I now regret supporting the need for traffic calming measures on the estate as I 

feel it must devalue our property, if our house was to be advertised for sale, can 

you imagine trying to sell the house in summertime with the lounge windows open 

and hearing that commotion outside on the road. Especially when the original 

instigator of the need for traffic calming measures on the estate does not 

experience these problems first hand outside his home. 

I don’t see that simply putting 20mph signs will make any difference, I would like 

to know why is it only Cherwell Avenue that have speed bumps anyhow? 

This seems like an age old problem from childhood when a few break the law 

everybody else who adheres to the law has to suffer in the respect of expensive 

car suspension repair bills and inconvenience, I couldn’t imagine being transported 

Page 60



over these bumps in an ambulance if infirm.  

It is unusual for me to comment on Public matters like these but I feel strongly that 

it is making our living environment a noisy and unhappy one and look forward to 

your comments that may rectify the situation. 

 

Response 

The existing traffic calming on Cherwell Avenue was introduced in accordance with DfT guidelines in 

respect of the hump spacing’s, heights and ramp gradients.  At present, there are no proposals to remove 

or amend the existing traffic calming on Cherwell Avenue. 

Supporter / 

Comment  U 

 

I have two comments. 

Firstly if there is some spare cash to reduce casualties do me a favour here on the 

Medway, I live in the corner house opposite is a wide footpath outside No 16. Cars 

park on this all the time.10 yards further round is a Cable relay box. Cars park here. 

Only ONE person can struggle through. I have two Blind neighbours at No11 whose 

guide dogs force them onto the road because there is never enough room to pass. 

I am the Homewatch co-ordinator for this end of the Medway and have 

spoken/pleaded with these car owners to no avail. One Family has 6 Cars. So forget 

your 20MPH signs, plant me a few bollards to stop cars parking. 

 

Secondly a 20 MPH speed limit is not going to solve the problem of speeding on 

this estate no more than the speed bumps put down a few years ago did. 

Drivers who live on the Estate are by and large not the cause of the problem 

either.  The Estate is used as a short cut from Bury New Road to Bank Top Street 

and West Starkey St  and beyond especially at peak times . They come into Higher 

Lomax Lane Down Cherwell or along Summit St and Severn Road to Cherwell or 

into Peel St all headed for Bank Top St. I think some of your team should park up 

on Bank Top or the Grapes Pup Car park and watch for yourselves. Cars will be fast 

on the Estate but the speeds on Bank Top St and West Starkey street past the 

Sports centre are ridiculous. A speed trap there would make a fortune. 

Four years ago  I suffered a heart attack so now I try to walk 4 miles a day , 

Morrison’s at Lunch time (I work from home) and around the Estate later in the 

day. So I am watching the idiots time and time again, and I have seen a few close 

ones. 

My solution for what it’s worth would be restrictions on Bank Top Street and West 

Starkey St to the Sports Centre to discourage use as a short cut. These could be 

Priority passing places with the bias in the opposite direction to the flow, or make 

Bank Top one way towards the estate. That would stop the problem in its tracks. 

Beyond that I have no objections to the 20MPH limit. I don’t feel it addresses the 

root cause. 

 

Response 

Driving on the footway and causing an obstruction is a Police matter and as such any concerns should be 

addressed to them to take action. 

The issue of rat running would need to be addressed as a wider policy on traffic movement around 

Heywood Centre. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  V 

 

I refer to the proposed 20mph speed limit in the Summit area Heywood. Cherwell 

Ave is used as a rat run at peak times morning & evening for people wishing to 

avoid the town centre they then continue on down Peel St & Starkey St via the 

Heywood Leisure village. I walk this route daily & every day there are people 

speeding along Cherwell Ave & Starkey St even though there are speed bumps the 

vehicles just bounce over the bumps with no regard for their vehicles or 

Page 61



pedestrians. I totally agree with the proposed speed restriction but am sorry it is 

not lower even though I am a driver myself. I also think that we need repeater 

signs at the junction of Higher Lomax Lane & Cherwell Ave that I cannot see on 

your proposal. I think that this scheme should continue along Starkey St at least 

past the Heywood leisure village, but that is for another day. 

 

Response 

In response to this public consultation, it is proposed to introduce additional 20mph repeater signs on 

Cherwell Avenue. 

The issue of rat running would need to be addressed as a wider policy on traffic movement around 

Heywood Centre. 

 

Supporter / 

Comment  W 

 

1. I have lived on this estate for 40 years and cannot recall any instances of danger 

to any residents or road users. 

2. The traffic calming measures on Cherwell Avenue already severely restrict speed 

to well below the current speed limit. 

3. Car parking on both sides of many of the estate's roads also currently restricts 

speed. 

4. From my observations only a tiny proportion of road users are flouting the 

current limit. These drivers are unlikely to be deterred by a reduction in the speed 

limit. 

5. When the 468 bus route was originally established small 20 seater buses were 

used. Currently the route is served by full-size single-deck buses, and at certain 

times, double-deck buses, often with minimal passenger levels. These large 

vehicles present a greater danger to other road users than any other vehicles. 

6. I see little point in establishing a lower speed limit which is impossible to 

enforce. Police have such limited resources that enforcing more serious offences 

(seat belts, unrestrained children, mobile phone use etc) is, at best, haphazard. 

7. The most hazardous area on the estate is the junction with Bury New Road, 

where the view of emerging drivers is severely restricted by cars and delivery 

vehicles illegally parked outside the Costcutter store, and other vehicles parked 

outside the Internet Pharmacy, often within the pedestrian crossing area. 

8. There are no schools on the estate, apart from the nursery on Derby Street, 

where approaching traffic on Peel Street is already slowed by the present traffic 

calming measures on Peel Street. 

9. I assume the funds allocated to the proposed changes are specifically designated 

for road safety proposals. If not, I would respectfully suggest that any available 

resources are diverted to more deserving social areas within the borough. 

10. I have no objections to the proposals as I always drive according to the 

prevailing road conditions, whether these are determined by weather conditions 

or traffic, and a reduced speed limit would have no effect on my use of the road 

within the estate. 

11. The above observations are primarily aimed at reducing unnecessary 

expenditure by local government where there appears to be no, or very limited, 

benefit to the community. If road safety is the prime concern I would much prefer 

funds to be allocated to improved maintenance of local roads, specifically early 

identification of damage, pot holes etc, and effective remedial action involving 

repair to a better than temporary standard. 

 

Response 

This scheme is the direct result of requests from local residents and ward councillors and funded by 

Heywood Township. 

The enforcement of any speed limit is the responsibility of the Police who have been consulted on the 

Page 62



proposals and have given their support to the scheme.  

 

Supporter / 

Comment  X 

 

I live on Hillcrest Avenue where we rarely get traffic doing more that 5mph due to 

parked cars, this also applies to much of Summit Street. Therefore repeater signs 

seem to be a waste hereabouts. 

Response 

The purpose of 20mph repeater signs is to remind all drivers of the reduced speed limit, it is a legal 

requirement that repeater signs are used where speed limits differ from 30mph. 

 

 

Page 63



Page 64



Document is Restricted

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	8 Minutes
	9 Heywood Township Delegation Arrangements 2016/17
	Enc. 2 for Heywood Township Delegation Arrangements 2016/17

	10 Heywood Township Committee – Appointments 2016/17
	11 Townships Plan 2015 & 2016
	Heywood Township Plan 2016 & 2017

	12 Heywood Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 1 - Heywood Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 2 - Heywood Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 2A - Heywood Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 3 - Heywood Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4 - Heywood Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 5 - Heywood Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 6 - Heywood Township Funds 2016/17

	13 Summit Estate Area, Heywood - Objections Received to Proposed 20mph Speed Limit
	Append. 1 for Summit Estate area, Heywood, Objections received to proposed 20mph speed limit
	Append. 2 for Summit Estate area, Heywood, Objections received to proposed 20mph speed limit
	Append. 3 for Summit Estate area, Heywood, Objections received to proposed 20mph speed limit


